ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2011
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Alan Dick, Chair

Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige

Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Sharon Cissna (via tel econference)
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON(S) :  SCHOOL SUPERI NTENDENT
- HEARD

OVERVI EWS): ALASKA CAREER AND TECHNI CAL EDUCATI ON PLAN
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

DR. STEVE ATWATER, Superi nt endent

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Kenai

Peni nsul a Borough School District.

QUY BELL, Assistant Conmm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent ( DLWD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview and answered
guestions about the Al aska Career and Techni cal Education Pl an.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2011



FRED VI LLA, Associate Vice President

Wor kf orce Prograns

Academ ¢ Affairs and Research

Uni versity of Al aska (UA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview and answered
guestions about the Al aska Career and Techni cal Education Pl an.

CYNDY CURRAN, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( EED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview and answered
guestions about the Al aska Career and Techni cal Education Pl an.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:01:56 AM

CHAIR ALAN DICK called the House Education Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representatives Dick, Pruitt,
Fei ge, Seaton, W/Ison, Kawasaki, and Cissna (via tel econference)

were present at the call to order.

PRESENTATI ON(S) :  SCHOOL SUPERI NTENDENT

8: 04: 06 AM

CHAI R DI CK announced that the first order of business would be a
presentation by the Superintendent of the Kenai Peninsula School
District.

8:05:46 AM

DR. STEVE ATWATER, Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, stated that the hone school program operated

solely for students within the school district. He reported
t hat although attendance had decreased to its |owest |evel ever,
an increase was projected for the following school year. He

opined that the district had the w dest array of school types
within Alaska. He noted that the students' scores conpared well
with other schools around Alaska, which he attributed to the

experienced teachers and the conmunity support. The comunity
provided the travel funds for students to conpete in nusic,
sports and other activities throughout the state. He observed

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 2- January 31, 2011



that the teacher evaluation process determ ned the effectiveness
of the teachers. He expressed the challenges for the district
to be the wde distribution of the schools, the econom es of
scale for small schools, and the l|evel of funding. He shared
his goal of noving the school district from "good" to
"excellent." He stressed a need for the schools to nore tightly
align their efforts in order to inprove. He expl ained that the
"tight-Ioose-tight or gani zat i onal structure" was bei ng
i npl enent ed. The initial "tight" would standardi ze conduct of
busi ness, process of intervention, and purchases, and the fina
"tight" would define the outcone and determ nation of attainnment

for the schools and students. He pointed out that, between
these "tight" end points, the "loose" pieces would allow each
school to have its own identity. He offered his belief that

this strategy would allow them to become an excellent school
district.

8:11:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reflected on the student advisor nodels
that had been voluntarily incorporated into six of the district
high schools, and the corresponding increase in graduation
rates. He asked if the school district planned to inplenent the
prograns in every school

DR. ATWATER replied that although the advisories were not yet
mandat ory, nore schools were inplenmenting the nodel

8:12: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that the data indicated this was
the nost effective statewide program for increasing graduation
rates, and he requested any further analysis of the program He
asked what woul d replace the highly successful natural resources
course, and if that replacenent curriculum would keep students
as engaged.

DR. ATWATER replied that the district was reducing and planned
to replace the program wth basic science courses. He
acknowl edged a pressure to replace the program and that the
district hoped to do so in the future.

8:14: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked about the effects of No Child Left
Behi nd (NCLB) on the school district.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2011



DR. ATWATER confirmed that NCLB focuses on testing, with sone
restriction of curriculum however, he endorsed the benefits for
t he expanded use of data analysis. He declined to |abel NCLB as
"all bad."

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if it had inproved the outcone from
t he school district.

DR. ATWATER offered his belief that basic skills were attained
at a better rate under NCLB, but that "educating the whole
child" was not so successful.

8:16:40 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON reflected that the "tight-1|oose-tight”
phil osophy allowed nore educational Ilatitude, and could be
i ncorporated as an aspect of NCLB

DR. ATWATER, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said that
staff notivation was his primary focus. He observed that forced
conpliance dulled their notivation and creativity. He expressed
a need to allow teachers the flexibility of teaching to their
strengths and the students interests, while neeting certain
educational targets. He affirned that his district denographics
were diverse and this was a key to the success of this district.

8:18: 56 AM

OVERVI EN'S): Al aska Career and Techni cal Education Pl an

8:19: 29 AM

CHAI R DI CK announced that the next order of business would be an
overview of the Al aska Career and Technical Education Plan
(CTE), presented by the Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent (DLVD) , Depar t ment of Educati on and Early
Devel opnent (EED), and the University of Al aska (UA).

8: 20: 58 AM

GUY BELL, Assistant Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent, pointed to the need
for a seamess transition from school to the |abor force. He
addressed the DLWD report, "Nonresidents Wrking in Al aska,"
which discussed the profile of jobs throughout the state,
stating that the key to filling the jobs by Al askans was to
prepare the in-state talent.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2011



8:25:19 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked about the percentage of decrease.

MR. BELL, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said that,
historically, the percentage of resident to nonresident jobs had
been an up and down curve.

8:26:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE requested a copy of the report, and asked
if there were any differentiation for people hired as Al aska
residents who then noved, and if it addressed the qualifications
for particul ar jobs.

MR, BELL replied that it was difficult to track people who had
noved, as the report was based on new hire data. He shared that
the required training, certification, or credential for each
occupation was included in the report.

8:27:50 AM
FRED WVILLA, Associate Vice President, Wrkforce Prograns,

Academi c Affairs and Research, University of Al aska, introduced
the Al aska Career and Technical Education Plan (CTE) [Included

in nmenbers' packets]. He expressed agreenent with the commttee
orientation for reading, witing, arithnetic, and relevance. He
stated that CTE was committed to rel evance. He introduced the

menbers of the CTE plan taskforce.
8:31: 00 AM

MR. VILLA gave a brief background for the plan, noting that it
was the product of an educational summt in 2009, and that the
summ t outcones included that Alaska shoul d: have world class
schools; develop the community culture; and naintain a vision
for student health and safety. He referenced the conmtnent
between EED and DLWD "to work together and |ead the devel opnent
of a career and technical education plan." He enphasi zed that
this was a working plan, continually undergoing inplenmentation
He affirmed that the principles of the plan declared that it be
i nclusive and accessible for all students in every area of the
state, and conprehensive for all |evels of education and career
opportunities. These principles required a great anount of
coordi nation, collaboration, and cooperation by the departnents.
He declared that six strategi es encapsul ated the CTE pl an.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- January 31, 2011



8:35: 30 AM

MR. VILLA directed attention to page 4 of the CTE handout. He
reported that the CTE plan was al so available on the EED, DW.D,

and UA websites. He stated Strategy 1: Make transitions
pl anned and accountable for both successful student progress and
system c cooperation. He pointed out that transitions for

students were difficult and that available information would
hel p snoboth these transitions. He defined personal |earning and
career plans (PLCP) as guides for students, teachers, parents
and counselors to maintain a vision of relevance for the
student's career path and to help snmooth the transitions.

8:39:45 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the career devel opnent test,
Wor kKeys, was going to be offered in mddle school.

MR. VILLA replied that the WrkKeys assessnent was an
occupat i onal i ndi cat or relative to a student's academc
devel opnent .

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked what changes needed to be nade at
the schools to ensure the use of PLCPs.

MR. VILLA clarified that WrkKeys was an assessnent, whereas the
PLCP was a map of the courses a student would need to attain
their goals. He declared that sone schools were already
providing the PLCP on a voluntary basis.

8:42:57 AM

MR. VILLA, in response to Representative P. WIson, explained
that PLCPs were a tool, a form for a guidance counselor and a
student to wuse in developnment and neasurenment of a plan to
attai n goal s.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked if it would be available to every
school

MR. VILLA replied that a suggested PLCP tenplate was being
distributed to every district.

8:44: 42 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that Al aska required every 11lth
grade student to take the WrkKeys assessnent, and that the
score appeared on the student transcripts. He stated that the
WN (Worldw de Interactive Network) devel opnental program begins
in mddle school, as well as the KeyTrain program to elevate
conpetencies in relation to WrkKeys. He shared that the
Wor kKeys assessnment could be repeated in the senior year, to
allow for an inproved score to appear on the transcript.

8:47:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked if WrkKeys was a test, or a too
for enpl oynent.

CYNDY  CURRAN, Di rector, Teaching and Learning  Support,
Departnment of Education and Early Developnent, replied that
Wor kKeys was a tool, which included three subtests: reading for
information, locating information, and nmath anal ysis. It aided
in an assessnent of progress toward the job profiles in a
student's areas of interest.

8:48:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if there was a standard statew de
assessnent of skill strengths to help direct mddle school
st udent s.

MR. VILLA, in response, stated that he was not aware of any such
assessment program for career selection. He pointed to the
outreach opportunities offered by a variety of industry sectors.

8:50: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA described a "career |adder" notebook that
was provided to students in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough School
District, which delineated the course studies at each grade
| evel necessary to acconplish a career interest. It was
conprehensive and included earnings potential, where skill sets
could be Ilearned, and advancenent possibilities in a given
field.

MR, VILLA replied that this was one of the nodels being
i ncorporated into the CTE pl an.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that WrkKeys anal yzed jobs and
t he necessary skills for entry level into a given position.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON suggested that students be assessed for
their natural talents and assisted with a correspondi ng career.

VR. VILLA replied that car eer, t echni cal , and student
organi zati ons were a good source for these assessnents.

8:59: 00 AM

MR, VILLA directed attention back to Strategy 2, page 5 of the
CTE handout, and said that it was necessary to align curricula
to nmeet the current academc, professional, and technical
i ndustry standards at all training institutions. He decl ared
that this required an inventory of the prograns in Alaska, a
review of the enployability standards, and an integration of
acadenmic with career and technical courses. He expressed the
need to align the secondary and post secondary prograns for a
seanl ess transition

9: 00: 08 AM

MR. VILLA declared that Strategy 3 identified and pronoted the
career and technical education delivery nodels. He expressed a

need to define the delivery nodels and the standards. He
explained that the access and scheduling for these delivery
nodel s also needed definition. He endorsed celebration for

effective prograns, so they could be replicated for use
el sewhere

9:01: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked how Strategies 2 and 3 would be
i npl enented in a small school outside the road system

MR WVILLA replied that it was already being acconplished via
t echni cal preparation courses where high school students
received dual credit for sequential high school and post
secondary coursework that lead to a degree. He noted that
apprenti ceshi p prograns were anot her nodel .

9:03: 02 AM

MR. VILLA reviewed Strategy 4, page 6, which focused on the need
to "recruit, develop, support, and retain high-quality career
and technical education teachers.” He reflected on the
contributions of teachers who canme froma specific industry. He
declared a need for |eadership to pronote this integration of
career and technical education. He spoke about Strategy 5,

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2011



whi ch detailed the need to maxinm ze the use of public facilities
for training and education of all students. He talked about the

inventory of these facilities, as well as +the necessary
standards, nmaintenance, and funding for each. He noved on to
Strategy 6, page 6, which detailed the need to establish and
mai ntai n sustainabl e funding. He confirned the need to

prioritize the avail abl e resources.
9:06: 21 AM

MR. VILLA, directing attention to page 39 of the handout, stated
that the University of Alaska had provided priorities and
guidelines in career and technical education. He comented that
a Workforce Developnment priority was for pre-college prograns
whi ch connected youth with career pathways, and that UA had nore
than 200 credit prograns in Wrkforce Developnent, wth many
nore that were non-credited. He pointed out that the Nationa
Associ ation of State Directors of Career and Technical Education
had presented its vision with all the goals being focused on
speci fi c out cones.

9:09: 13 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON reported on her attendance at the
Nati onal Conference of State Legislators, and shared that an
econoni st had cautioned to not cut funding for education.

CHAIR DICK commented that a fresh approach was necessary. He
opined that the alignment of education and industry was
important and possible, and that the noney would be nade
avai |l abl e.

9:11: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON, referring to Strategy 6.2, read:
"Encouraging CTE providers to take advantage of the State of
Al aska corporate tax credit for <contributions to qualified
training prograns.” He questioned that with the Kenai Peninsul a
Bor ough  School District curtailing the natural resour ces
classes, was it possible for the corporate tax credits to be
di rected through school districts for funding at a | ocal |evel.

MR. BELL replied that the prograns were not certified by DLW
however, prograns such as AVIEC, which qualified for a tax
credit, could receive corporate tax contributions for specific
pr ogr ans.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 9- January 31, 2011



9:13:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested a definitive response regarding
the use of corporate tax credits through school districts for
career technical courses which were not certified by DLWD.

9:14: 34 AM

REPRESENTATIVE FEIGE, directing attention back to the CTE
program asked how success and failure woul d be measur ed.

MR. VILLA, in response, asked to continue his presentation which
woul d answer the question. He confirnmed that the CTE plan had
been reviewed by hundreds of people, and had received letters of
support for its inplenentation from EED, DLWD, and University of
Al aska. He listed the wvarious upcomng group neetings for
input, strategies, priorities, and action plans. He stated that
action itens within the CTE plan were being defined to neasure
out cones. He presented the goal for a mechanismto sustain and

share current information. He predicted an information sheet
available to every mddle and high school student, listing the
avai l able degrees and the necessary coursework, as well as

contacts for nore informati on.
9: 20: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON suggested that the stakehol ders
identify the gaps in the plan.

MR.  VILLA concluded by presenting an anecdote of high school
students accessing and sharing information on the conputer about
career choi ces.

9: 25: 22 AM

M5. CURRAN hi ghlighted the CTE actions being done in conjunction
with UA, EED, and DLVD. She read from pages 13-29 of the CTE
pl an, which included: ensuring that every student has a personal
| ear ni ng and car eer pl an (PLCP); coordi nating program
devel opnment and delivery anong training prograns to reduce
duplication of effort and the need for renediation; devel oping
data-sharing and other processes that provide information on
student progress from one educational level to the next and from
school to career; identifying current CTE prograns and curricul a
and making the information publicly accessible; identifying
i ndustry standards for statewide priority industries and
incorporating the identified know edge and skills into aligned

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -10- January 31, 2011



CTE «curricula at elenmentary, secondary, and postsecondary
| evel s; cataloging and dissem nating practices and supporting
materials for integrating academc G.Es into CTE prograns and
career applications into acadenmic prograns; and, aligning CTE
programs of study that connect secondary academc and CTE
courses with recognized industry and postsecondary standards and
program content. She confirnmed that EED was working with the
school districts on strategies to put these into practi ce.

9:30: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if the Perkins federal funds were
limted to certain school districts.

M5. CURRAN replied that not every district had applied for the
f undi ng.

9:31:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the training certificates were
accepted by industry and if those students were prioritized for
enpl oynent . He gave an exanple of a University of Al aska
program for Public Safety Oficer training; however, DLW did
not prioritize these students for hire.

MR VILLA replied that the CTE plan was for alignnent of
curricula to industry standards. He pointed to a variety of
i ndustries which had published standards which could be directly
applied to curricula. He noted that some courses would be
introductory toward a career, but would not apply toward a
certificate.

MR. BELL inforned the commttee that DLMD did not have a nandate
to certify prograns or industry standards. He shared that the
only area of authority to approve prograns was under the Al aska
Per f ormance Schol arshi p program

9:35: 17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that it was necessary
for the training certificate to be recognized by the industry as

a priority in the hiring process.

9:36: 32 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked if there was value for a statew de
curriculum requirenent for an Cccupational Safety and Health
Adm ni stration (OSHA) conpliant basic safety program

MR. VILLA expressed his reluctance for course nmandates. He
noted that sonme standards could be inplenented in various ways
by the school districts.

MS5. CURRAN established that EED and DLWD were in the process of
identifying prograns and collecting information to report what
progranms currently existed and where they |ead. She pointed out
the availability of on-line prograns. She nmoved on to Strategy
4: devel oping strategies to educate, recruit, and retain
quality CTE teachers, faculty, counselors, and advisors. She
shared that EED was working to allow CTE endorsenent for
certified teachers. She reflected on ways for Type M Limted
teaching certificates to be used by an individual in any schoo
district.

9:42: 41 AM

M5. CURRAN expl ained that a Type Mcertificate was granted to a
person who had career and technical expertise in an industry,
was a recogni zed expert in Al aska Native |anguage or culture, or
had a Junior Reserve Oficer Training certification from the
armed forces. She clarified that a school district requested
the Type MLimted certification for the individual.

9:44:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked if the CTE program addressed sem -
retired or under enployed peopl e.

MR, VILLA replied that the CTE plan was inclusive and he
stressed the inportance for an inventory of the training
avail able in a given area.

9:45: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to include the Departnment of Revenue
on his wearlier request for clarification on corporate tax
credits to the school districts. He opined that an integrated
response would nmake it weasier to approach corporations for
support to the CTE prograns.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- January 31, 2011



MR. VILLA affirmed that the cooperation between EED, DLWD, and
the University of Alaska while working on this program
denonstrated the commonality of goals.

CHAIR DI CK suggested a future re-wite of the standards to
i nclude the ideas currently being di scussed.

9:49: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA directed attention to Strategy 5, which
called for a distribution of the inventory of the public
facilities and equi pnent available for training. She suggest ed
a statew de three week educational sem nar for this CTE plan.

MR. VILLA replied that the regional training centers had been
contacted and inventoried, and that this was being distributed.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA appl auded the effort by the ACTEP team
9:51:47 AM

CHAIR DICK thanked the participants, and announced the next
regul ar nmeeting of the conmttee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the

Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment neeting was
adj ourned at 9:52 a.m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -13- January 31, 2011



